
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 

BOARD MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

Councillor Rob Polhill (Chairman) Labour 

Councillor John Stockton Labour 

Councillor Mike Wharton Labour 

 
 
 
Please contact Lynn Derbyshire on 0151 471 7389 or e-mail 
lynn.derbyshire@halton.gov.uk  for further information. 
The next meeting of the Board is on Thursday, 22 September 2011 
 

Mersey Gateway Executive Board 
 
Thursday, 16 June 2011 3.00 p.m. 
Marketing Suite, Municipal Building 

Public Document Pack



 
ITEMS TO BE DEALT WITH  

IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

Part l 
 
Item No. Page No. 
  
1. MINUTES 
 

 

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
  

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
personal or personal and prejudicial interest which they have in 
any item of business on the agenda no later than when that item 
is reached and, with personal and prejudicial interests (subject 
to certain exceptions in the Code of Conduct for Members), to 
leave the meeting prior to discussion and voting on the item. 
 
 

 
 

3. RESULTS OF THE MARKET CONSULTATION 
 

1 - 13 

4. PROCUREMENT PREPARATION 
 

14 - 16 

 
 
In accordance with the Health and Safety at Work Act the Council is 
required to notify those attending meetings of the fire evacuation 
procedures. A copy has previously been circulated to Members and 
instructions are located in all rooms within the Civic block. 



REPORT TO:  Mersey Gateway Executive Board 
 
DATE: 16th June 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director – Policy and 

Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Mersey Gateway – Results of Market 

Consultation 
 
WARDS:  
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report explains the response we have received to the recent market 

engagement exercise, from firms interested in delivering the Mersey 
Gateway Project.  This consultation process was reported to the Board 
on 17th March 2011. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That 
 

(1) The MGEB note the constructive comments and advice received 
and the actions arising that will support a robust procurement 
process. 

  
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 The final Market Engagement exercise before commencing procurement 

was launched in February where comments were invited on several 
topics, with responses being required by 4th March 2011.  A number of 
groups have formed consortia with the intention of expressing an interest 
in bidding for Mersey Gateway when the Contract Notice is published in 
the Official Journal of the European Union (OJEU).  Overall we received 
a very encouraging response which demonstrates a high level of interest 
in tendering for the Mersey Gateway Project. 

 
3.2 The formal response to the Market Engagement is at Appendix 1.  The 

key issues to note are as follows: 
 
Procurement Process 
 
3.3 The procurement process will be based on the Competitive Dialogue 

procedure where bidders will develop and discuss their proposals in 
controlled negotiation with the project team.  Respondents said they 
would welcome a clear understanding of the evaluation methodology and 
that the Competitive Dialogue process would benefit from an early 
workshop with each bidder leading to ‘clarification’ issues being dealt 
with promptly.  Keeping interim submissions to a minimum would also 
reduce time and cost, and focus procurement on the essentials. 

 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 
Payment Mechanism 
 
3.4 The Council would pay the Project Company based on its performance 

of the contract services measured through a payment mechanism.  It is 
proposed that the key component of the payments mechanism for 
Mersey Gateway is the journey time for using the new crossing.  
Respondents recognised the logic in such an approach but stressed that 
the Project Company would be exposed to journey times being longer 
due to higher volumes of traffic outside its control.  Some moderation of 
target journey times would therefore make sense that took into account 
the traffic using the project roads.  The Council acknowledge that it is 
important to ensure that the Project Company has an incentive to 
support increases in traffic using the new crossing in line with the 
economic objectives of the project. 

 
Contaminated Land 
 
3.5 It is proposed that certain remediation works dealing with existing 

contamination are undertaken in advance of the main DBFO contract 
being put in place.  The aim is to remove risk that would otherwise 
present cost and time uncertainty for the Project Company, leading to 
higher prices being quoted.  Respondents welcome this approach and 
suggested measures to improve the risk taken by the bidder.  The role of 
the contaminated land regulator would be a key factor in reducing 
uncertainty, and the Council was urged to engage with the regulator in its 
preparation of these works and to also put in place liaison arrangements 
for the bidders to access the regulator during procurement. 

 
Tolling Infrastructure 
 
3.6 The Council scheme design assumes tolls will be collected through 

barrier controlled plaza facilities, but it is envisaged that a move to free 
flow tolling (Open Road Tolling) would take place at some stage in the 
future as modern tolling systems become more established and could 
function economically.  Respondents felt that Open Road Tolling could 
commence from the outset.  The Council is discussing tolling options 
with the Department for Transport and will take the views of industry into 
account before deciding on the application of Open Road Tolling. 

 
Operational Governance Arrangements 
 
3.7 Mersey Gateway would establish a business enterprise with a turnover 

exceeding £50m a year.  This scale and complexity of business calls for 
appropriate specialist skills operating in an organisation that is 
empowered to exercise effective management and control under the 
direction of the Council.  Respondents commented on the organisation 
options being considered for the project and these will be taken into 
account when establishing the project structure to succeed the current 
project team. 

Page 2



 
Advance Works 
 
3.8 In addition to dealing with contaminated sites, the project team are also 

considering other advanced works and surveys to remove uncertainty.  
Overall the advanced works would enable bidders to offer the Council 
improved value for money.  Respondents indicated their priority for 
advanced works and surveys, and these will now be taken into account 
in the next phase of the project plan. 

  
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The project is a key priority for the Council which will deliver benefits 

locally and across the wider region. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 All substantive implications are reported above and in the report annex. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 
 
 See above. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all, including improved cycling 
and walking facilities. 

 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

Mersey Gateway is forecast to deliver road safety benefits for vehicles 
and facilitate safer conditions for walking and cycling in the Borough. 

 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
 Mersey Gateway is a priority project in the urban renewal programme. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 The results of the Market Engagement will help to reduce overall project 

risk and improve value for money and delivery. 
 

Page 3



 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all. 

 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 
 
 

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer 
 

Page 4



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Halton Borough Council 

Mersey Gateway 

The Council’s Response to Feedback 

Received During Consultation 

DRAFT 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

KPMG LLP 

06 June 2011 

This report contains 9 pages 

 

 

Page 5



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

 06 June 2011 

 

 

Contents 

1 Introduction 1 

2 Procurement Process 1 

3 Payment Mechanism 2 

4 Contaminated Land 3 

5 Tolling Infrastructure 4 

6 Operational Governance Arrangements 5 

7 Advance Works 6 

8 Alternative Contractual and Risk Sharing 

Arrangements 7 

9 Additional Issues Raised 7 

9.1 Lender Involvement 7 

Page 6



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

 06 June 2011 

 

 1 
 

1 Introduction 

Halton Borough Council completed a market consultation exercise relating to the Mersey 

Gateway Project in February and March 2011. The consultation included the circulation 

of a Project Information Memorandum (“PIM”) to potential bidders and an industry day 

followed by an invitation to submit written responses to specific matters raised in the 

PIM.  

The Council welcomes the feedback that has been provided by potential bidders and 

thanks them for taking the time to help the Council tailor the scheme details before the 

formal launch of procurement. 

The Council is encouraged by both the quality of the consortia and their level of interest 

in the Project. The Project remains the number one priority for the Council and the region 

and, with this in mind, all issues raised have been reviewed carefully. Following this 

review, the Council has taken onboard a number of key messages from the market and 

has made some adjustments to the approach to certain matters. This document 

summarises the responses received from the market and how the Council’s approach has 

evolved as a result of these. 

 

 

2 Procurement Process 

We asked...  
...for your views on the process proposed to be adopted for the procurement. In particular, 

we sought comments on the adoption of a competitive dialogue process and the specifics 

of that process. 

 

You said... 

• A bid workshop at the commencement of dialogue would assist in identifying the key 

interdependencies and interfaces and mapping out a process and programme; 

• The clarifications procedure should be closed early in advance of the tender 

submission, to avoid material changes at the end of the process which could have a 

significant impact on the developed bid proposals; 

• All phases of the process must be accompanied by a clear indication of the proposed 

evaluation criteria; and 

• Interim submissions during the competitive dialogue process should be kept to a 

minimum. 

 

Page 7



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

 06 June 2011 

 

 2 
 

We are listening and are doing the following to address the feedback... 

• We have confirmed that we intend to qualify 3 bidders from the PQQ evaluation 

stage to take forward to the competitive dialogue stage in order to strike the right 

balance between providing each party with an adequate chance of being awarded the 

contract whilst ensuring a robust competition; 

• We have confirmed that the dialogue period will commence with a number of bidder 

briefings; 

• We have confirmed that we will only require a very limited number of formal 

submissions during the competitive dialogue; 

• We have developed a straightforward approach to evaluation that is very much price 

focussed once minimum quality thresholds are met. The detailed criteria will be 

shared with bidders from the outset in the tender documentation; 

• We have established a tightly controlled process for the administration of the 

dialogue stage to ensure focussed and productive meetings that stay on topic and we 

will be clear throughout with regard to which matters are not for debate. Agendas will 

be circulated for comment in advance, meetings will be recorded and bidders will be 

given appropriate time to act on the decisions taken during the dialogue sessions; and 

• With regard to the involvement of funders during the procurement, more information 

is provided in Section 9.1 of this document. We have, however, noted comments 

received with regard to ensuring the right incentives for funders during the dialogue 

process and can confirm that if a funding competition were to be required at preferred 

bidder stage then the bidder’s funders will have the right to match the revised terms 

for 50% of the project debt. 

 

 

3 Payment Mechanism 

We asked...  
...for your views on the proposed payment mechanism. In particular, we sought comments 

on the specific elements of the proposed mechanism including the journey time, 

performance and revenue reconciliation aspects.  

 

You said... 

• Factors outside the Project Company’s control need to be recognised; 

• The rate of pavement deterioration depends on the traffic mix and in particular the 

volume of heavy goods vehicles. The payment mechanism needs to account for this 

lifecycle cost risk;  

• It will be the Council’s desire to increase traffic volume and therefore revenue 

generation. This objective will be shared by the bidders however, they will be looking 

for protection in terms of the knock on effect of increased volumes on journey times, 

and potentially on increased operational and maintenance costs. 

Page 8



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

 06 June 2011 

 

 3 
 

We are listening and are doing the following to address the feedback... 

• The Council is taking these messages onboard as the payment mechanism is 

developed and agrees that there are elements of commercial risk that are best shared 

with or retained by the Council. The following instances are now envisaged to result 

in an adjustment to the baseline Unitary Charge (“UC”): 

o Transactions being above or below a prescribed range around the baseline 

estimate of traffic volume, to take account of the impact on toll collection costs; 

and 

o Heavy Goods Vehicle usage being above or below a prescribed range around the 

baseline estimate, to take account of the impact on maintenance costs.  

• With regard to the journey time element of the payment mechanism, the primary 

objective is to incentivise efficient, well-managed operation of the Project, supported 

by the appropriate influence of operation risk on scheme design, and recognise that 

poor operational service by the Project Company (as manifest by delays to users) will 

have an impact on the Council’s toll revenue (and therefore the mechanism reduces 

the UC to reflect that failure in service). The mechanism is not intended to reduce the 

UC if the delays are the result of demand exceeding the design capacity and there will 

be a defined list of circumstances that qualify as relief events.  

 

4 Contaminated Land 

We asked...  
...for your views on the approach to contaminated land. In particular, we sought 

comments on the work performed to date, risk transfer and the approach going forwards. 

 

You said... 

• Undertaking advance remediation works in a number of complex areas would be 

beneficial for the project; in particular, where in-situ remediation is required and the 

programme for these works may need to be extended to achieve the required clean up 

levels. It would significantly reduce the risks to the main project programme to 

ensure that these works were complete in advance of main works commencement; 

• The regulators must be involved throughout the development of the detailed design to 

ensure that their requirements are met before a design solution is committed to for the 

project. The availability of the regulators for discussion with bidders during the 

procurement process will be essential; 

• It should be recognised that it will be appropriate to transfer risk to the Project 

Company only where that risk is reasonably quantifiable and can be adequately 

priced; and 

• Bidders will need to understand further the mechanism for technical due diligence for 

the scheme prior to financial close, to reach satisfaction for themselves and their 

funders that the design proposals will close-out these risks as far as practicable during 

design and construction, in addition to obtaining the relevant regulatory approvals. 

Page 9



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

 06 June 2011 

 

 4 
 

We are listening and are doing the following to address the feedback... 

• Remediation as part of the advance works is being progressed at the Catalyst Trade 

Park site, and we are aiming to have this completed in advance of the main works 

commencement; 

• The need to undertake more remediation in advance of financial close is being 

investigated and will take into account the results of additional ground investigation;    

• The views of the regulator are reflected in the above actions and the remediation 

requirements are expected to be clearly defined so that the Project Company is in a 

position to take responsibility for mitigating the effects of contamination due to the 

design and construction of the scheme; 

• The Council has continued to liaise with the environmental regulators and 

acknowledges the fact that they will need to be involved in the design and tender 

processes.  This has been discussed with the regulators and a mechanism will be put 

in place to ensure that appropriate consultation can take place during the procurement 

and design process; and 

• The Council is conscious of the issue of risk transfer and the need for technical due 

diligence with regard to contaminated land and is developing an approach to ensure 

that this can be adequately accommodated. 

 

 

 

5 Tolling Infrastructure 

We asked...  
...for your views on the approach to tolling infrastructure. In particular, we sought 

comments on the relative merits and viability of barrier tolling versus Open Road Tolling 

and alternative concepts.  

 

 

You said... 

• A procurement process that is flexible to incorporate ORT from day one, should 

legislative change support this, could offer significant benefits for the Project, 

particularly in terms of level of service and capital cost savings, as well as in terms of 

reduced risk profile complexity (when compared to introduction at a later stage); and 

• Violations risk must be properly addressed before a potential migration to ORT.  

 

We are listening and are doing the following to address the feedback... 

• The Council agrees with the market sentiment to remain flexible with regard to the 

optimum tolling solution and discussions are continuing around how this might be 

best achieved; 

Page 10



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

 06 June 2011 

 

 5 
 

• The Council has now completed and approved its final business case analysis of the 

optimum solution to tolling technology. The findings are finely balanced and are 

swayed by the trade off between capital and operational cost savings and the potential 

for additional revenue leakage risk; and 

• It is recognised that throughout the dialogue process tolling technology will remain a 

key topic for discussion and where bidders can offer innovative, good-value solutions 

in an Open Road Tolling context then the Council will be very interested in 

discussing those proposals. 

 

6 Operational Governance Arrangements  

We asked...  
...for your views on the approach to operational governance arrangements. In particular, 

we sought an indication of willingness to participate in the Mersey Gateway Crossings 

Board (MGCB) structure via an equity contribution and possible sharing in revenue risk.  

 

You said... 

• The consortium would like to understand the support from the Council and 

Department for Transport to the MGCB in the event of shortfall in toll revenues 

impacting on the operation of the project; 

• There might be opportunities to add value to the project and increase the incentives 

for the private partner if the MGCB is structured as a joint venture between the public 

and private partners; and 

• The lenders will need to understand the intended role of the MGCB and the intended 

scope of its powers. 

 

We are listening and are doing the following to address the feedback... 

• We have been very pleased at the support for the concept of the MGCB and can 

confirm it is the preferred delivery vehicle for the operational governance of the 

project; 

• The MGCB will be established on an arms-length basis from the Council and will 

enter into the Project Agreement with the Project Company for the term of the 

Project. The Council is expecting to financially guarantee the obligations of the 

MGCB to the Project Company. Income from tolls and payments from the 

Department for Transport will be paid to the Board and the Unitary Charge payments 

due to the Project Company will be paid by the Board. In short, the Board will be 

responsible for the management of the contract with the Project Company and the 

cash flows that relate to it as well as the management of the Council’s obligations 

under the contract and the monitoring function.  Bidders will be asked to bid to 

support the work of the Board both through the provision of expertise in the 

management of the crossing and the tolling strategy in exchange for access to a 

proportion of surplus toll revenues; and 

Page 11



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

 06 June 2011 

 

 6 
 

• An approach to procurement and evaluation which will take account of bidders’ 

offers to participate in the MGCB will be developed. This information will be shared 

with bidders in the tender documentation issued at the start of procurement. 

 

7 Advance Works  

We asked...  
...for your views on the scope of advance works. In particular, we sought comments on 

the studies performed to date and what was needed going forwards. 

 

 

You said... 

• It is vital that bidders will be provided with full details of the scope of these contracts 

and the performance guarantees being sought from the advance works contractors; 

and  

• That the following should be included in the advance works: 

o Demolition and vegetation clearance (the ecological surveys should include bat 

surveys of buildings to be demolished and if major roosts are identified the 

provision of alternative roost sites); 

o Selected utility diversions, to the extent that they can currently be identified; 

o Selected remediation; 

o Full asset surveys of all existing infrastructure that will become the responsibility 

of the Project Company, including drainage; and 

o Surveys for unexploded ordnance. 

 

We are listening and are doing the following to address the feedback... 

• We are conscious of the benefits of obtaining warranties from advance works 

contractors and this is being taken into account in the procurement of these works; 

• Demolition of selected structures and some vegetation clearance is planned where it 

is necessary to facilitate any advance works.  Consideration will be given to the need 

for further vegetation clearance in advance as appropriate; 

• Ecological surveys are ongoing to provide survey data that meets the requirements of 

the planning conditions in terms of pre commencement surveys and where 

appropriate these will include bat surveys; 

• Selected utility diversions are being progressed as part of the advance works and we 

are also continuing our dialogue with the utilities companies and providers to 

progress this matter; 

• Selected remediation is being progressed as part of the advance works (this is 

discussed in more detail in Section 4 above); and 

Page 12



ABCD  

 Halton Borough Council 

 Mersey Gateway 

 KPMG LLP 

 06 June 2011 

 

 7 
 

• A detailed desk study into the issue of unexploded ordnance is to be undertaken to 

clarify the risks.  On the basis of the outcome of this study the Council will consider 

what further investigations of this issue need to be carried out as part of the advance 

works. 

8 Alternative Contractual and Risk Sharing Arrangements 

• The Council welcomes and is encouraged by the level of innovation demonstrated in 

the feedback with regard to how the Project Company might share in revenue risk via 

participation in the Mersey Gateway Crossings Board or an alternative arrangement. 

Please see Section 6 for a discussion of the chosen framework.  

 

 

9 Additional Issues Raised 

9.1 Lender Involvement 

• When viewed in aggregate, the feedback expressed that achieving enforceable, firm 

commitments from banks at Final Tender would not be practicable and a number of 

recommendations were put forward that have been deemed beneficial to the Project. 

The Council is now able to offer greater detail on how lenders are envisioned to be 

involved, drawing on the ideas submitted:  

o The Council agrees with the premise that obtaining enforceable firm 

commitments from banks at Final Submission Stage is not practicable. Instead, 

the Council would like to see a ‘relationship banking’ approach from bidders for 

the Project.  Each consortium will be expected to select a Core Bank Group prior 

to bid submission and through these banks effectively have a significant portion 

(minimum requirement to be confirmed) of the senior debt requirement covered. 

The successful bidder and its Core Bank Group would then be responsible for 

obtaining commitments for the rest of the debt funding requirement during the 

Preferred Bidder stage. 

o The Core Bank Group would be expected to be made up of experienced project 

finance lenders and would be required to undertake detailed due diligence and 

sign-off on the key commercial and financial parameters of the bid so that any 

matters of concern are brought to the attention of the Council at the bidding stage. 

The Council will require evidence indicating the extent of work performed by the 

Core Bank Group and the robustness of its due diligence sign-off. The Council 

will likely reserve the right to hold a funding competition to potentially improve 

the funding terms if deemed appropriate. There would, however, be a “right to 

match” provision for 50% of the debt to incentivise the necessary due diligence 

work by the bank. 

Page 13



REPORT TO:  Mersey Gateway Executive Board 
 
DATE: 16th June 2011 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: Strategic Director- Policy and Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Mersey Gateway – Preparation for 

Procurement 
 
WARDS:  
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The report explains the progress made in preparing for the procurement 

process. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION: That 
 

(1) The MGEB note that the project team are now ready to launch the 
procurement process subject to receiving the required approval 
from Government. 

  
3.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Although the Council is not able to commence procurement until the 

funding agreement with Government is settled in detail, we have made 
good progress with our procurement preparation.  Discussions with 
Department officials are also progressing and the project continues to 
receive expressions of support from Government including advice from 
the Prime Minister that reinforced the backing given to the project. 

 
3.2 The project team is now ready to launch procurement with the following 

key developments now in place: 
 
3.3 The statutory powers required to acquire land and to construct and 

maintain the scheme, including operating tolling/charging powers for the 
new crossing and for Silver Jubilee Bridge, were confirmed in December 
and we have now developed a programme of compulsory acquisition 
ready to be executed.  The land will be assembled in order of priority, 
taking into account the need to undertake advanced works and surveys 
on specific sites and the time required to relocate businesses.  The land 
assembly will need to be completed by the time we expect to award the 
DBFO contract, and to achieve this the first phase is expected to be 
executed over the summer. 

 
3.4 The Council specification is intended to provide maximum opportunity for 

the private sector to innovate.  A design guide is close to completion 
which explains the site constraints alongside the requirements of the 
Council and other third parties, including regulating authorities.  The 
Council, as the Local Planning Authority, will also be called upon to 

Agenda Item 4Page 14



consider submissions under the Planning Conditions that are in place to 
control the approved development and were issued as part of the 
planning approval announced in December.  The project team are 
looking to provide bidders with a clear understanding of how the Council 
will assess the Planning Condition submissions.  To assist this, a 
Planning Officer has been seconded to the project team but it is 
important that the development control decision remains independent to 
the promotion of Mersey Gateway. 

 
3.5 The funding discussions with Department for Transport officials are 

based on toll charges currently applying at the Mersey Tunnels, and the 
project team has developed a commercial framework that is designed to 
make this toll revenue go as far as possible towards contributing to the 
total cost of the project.  By ensuring that economic arrangements are in 
place for securing the value of tolls, the Council will have more scope to 
target the funds available for toll discount schemes. 

 
3.6 The procurement strategy has been developed based on selecting three 

candidates (the bidders) who will be invited to participate in a 
Competitive Dialogue procurement process.  The level of market interest 
evident in Mersey Gateway indicates that the Council may have more 
than three groups who express an interest, and a pre-qualification 
process has been prepared that is designed to select the three best 
candidates from those applying.  The Project Information Memorandum 
and the Pre-Qualification Questionnaire have been prepared along with 
an evaluation methodology and assessment process. 

 
3.7 So, once we receive approval from Government we can launch 

procurement.  The timing of the launch is sensitive to the main holiday 
months as we would want to avoid publishing the Contract Notice in the 
period between the end of July and early September so that we gain the 
maximum response to the procurement opportunity.  

  
4.0 POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The project is a key priority for the Council which will deliver benefits 

locally and across the wider region. 
 
5.0 OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES 
 
6.1 Children and Young People in Halton 
 

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all. 

 
6.2 Employment, Learning and Skills in Halton 

Page 15



 
 See above. 
 
6.3 A Healthy Halton 
 

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all, including improved cycling 
and walking facilities. 

 
6.4 A Safer Halton 
 

Mersey Gateway is forecast to deliver road safety benefits for vehicles 
and facilitate safer conditions for walking and cycling in the Borough. 

 
6.5 Halton’s Urban Renewal 
 
 Mersey Gateway is a priority project in the urban renewal programme. 
 
7.0 RISK ANALYSIS 
 
7.1 The preparation process in advance of securing final funding approval 

from Government commits preparation costs, but being ready to start 
procurement on receiving approval will reduce delay.  The cost of delay 
is estimated to be between £1m and £2m a month. 

 
8.0 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 

Mersey Gateway provides an opportunity to improve accessibility to 
services, education and employment for all. 

 
9.0 LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS UNDER SECTION 100D OF THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 
 
 

Document Place of Inspection Contact Officer 
 

Page 16


	Agenda
	3 RESULTS OF THE MARKET CONSULTATION
	Annex 1 MG Response to Feedback

	4 PROCUREMENT PREPARATION

